AUBURN AREA RECREATION AND
PARK DISTRICT

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

For the Fiscal Year Ended
March 31, 2023
(With Comparative Amounts as of March 31, 2022)

NOREANIGRO-

~68=



AUBURN AREA RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
For the Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2023
Table of Contents

FINANCIAL SECTION
Page
Independent Auditors’ Report 1
Management's Discussion and Analysis....... 4
Basic Financial Statements:
Government-wide Financial Statements:
Statement of Net Position ISR &
Statement 0f ACTIVILICS v oo rsssemaressseseemsessieens, O OSSO B
Governmental Funds Financial Statements:
Governmental Funds Balance Sheet. v 13

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to Statement of Net Position ..o 14
Statement of Governmental Fund Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balances ., DUV 5.
Recenciliation of the Statement of Governmental Fund Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes

in Fund Balances 1o the Statement of ACtVIHES. ..o onosesossmssssons s oo 16

Notes to Financial Statemenzs.....ooovo, oo 17

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund

........... 47
Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability eomeresinremmsssscnmorsons 48
Schedule of Pension Contributions . eetserenee o enenns . 44
Schedule of Changes in District’s Total OPER Liability and Related Ratios ....... 50
OTHER INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORTS
Independent Auditors’ Report an Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance
and Qther Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing StanAardS. oo SR ONBPOIORORTOOS |

-{}9_



Financial Section

-0 -



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Board of Directors
Auburn Area Recreation and Park District
Auburn, California

Opinion

We have audited the zccompanying financial statements of the governmental activities and each major fund
of the Auburn Area Recreation and Park District as of and for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2023, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements
as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
positicn of the governmental activities and each major fund of the District as of March 31, 2023, and the
respective changes in its financial position for the year then ended in accordance with accounling principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Change in Accounting Principle
As described in Notes 1, and 4 to the financial statements, as of April 1, 2022, the District adopted new
accounting guidance, GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, Our epinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards. issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilitics under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We
are required to be independent of the District and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accardance
with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management s responsible for the preparation and fair presentatior of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditicns or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a
going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known
information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Dur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resuiting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial lkelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing
Standards, we:

* Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

» ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the firancial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

* Obtair an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial
statements,

* Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about the District’s ability te continue as a going concern for a reasonable period
of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among cther matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal controf related matters
that we identified during the audit,

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, schedule of proportionate share of the net
pension liability, schedule of pension contributions, schedule of changes in the District’s total OPEB liability
and related ratios, and the notes to the required supplementary information be presented to supplement the
basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reparting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
inquiries of management ahout the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures de not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance,



Prior-Year Comparative Information

The financial statements include partial prior-year comparative information. Such information does nat
include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with
the District’s financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022, from which such partial information
was derived.

Other Reporting Required by Gevernment Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a separate report dated June 23,
2023, on our consideration of the District's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters,
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting
and compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
District’s jnternal contro! over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District's internal control
over financial reporting and compliance.

Walnut Creek, California
june 23, 2023



AUBURN AREA RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
Management's Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
For the Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2023

Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) offers readers of Auburn Area Recreation and Park District's
financial statements a narrative overview of the District's financial activities for the fiscal year ended March
31, 2023. This MD&A presents financial highlights, an overview of the accompanying financial statements, an
analysis of net position and results of operations, a current-to prior year analysis, a discussion on restrictions,
commitments and limitations, and a discussion of significant activity involving capital assets and long-term
debt. Please read in conjunction with the financial statements which follow this section.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

* The District’s net position decreased 2.68%. or $278,078 from the prior year's net position of
$10,372,887 1o 510,094,809 as a result of this vear’s operations.

s Total revenues from all sources increased by 6.20%, or $350,289 from $5,651,947 to $6,002,236, from
the prior year, primarily due to an increase in property tax revenue of $263,018.

¢ Total expenses for the District’s operations increased by 3592% or $1,659.564 from $4,620,750 w
$6,280,314, from the prior year, primarily due to an increase in employee benefits and depreciation
expenses of $1,241,089 and $144,424, respectively. The increase in employee benefit expenses was due
to the annual revaluation of the District's Net Pension and OPER liabilities, and is non-cash in nature.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This annual repert consists of three parts - management discussion and analysis {this section), the basic
financial statements, and required suppiementary information. The basic financial statements include two
kinds of statements that present different views of the District

»  District-wide fingncial statements provide both short-term and long-term information about the District's
overall financial status,
*  Fund financial statements focus on individual parts of the District, reporting the District’s operations in
more detail than the districr-wide statements,
*  The governmentu! funds statemens tell how basic services were inanced in the short term as well
as what remains for future spending.

Figure A-1. Organization of Auburn Area Recreation and Park District's
Annual Financial Report
P R et-raa i pigrppd i M I
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AUBURN AREA RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
Management's Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
For the Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2023

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Figure A-2 summarizes the major features of the District's financial statements, including the portion of the
District’s activities they caver and the types of information they contain.

Figure A-2. Major Features of the Districi-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Type of Governmental
Statements District-Wide Fund
Scope Entire District The activities of the
District that are not
proprietary or
fiduciary, such as
fire and ambulance
services
Required + Statement of Net | » FBalance Sheet
ft’:g:ri;:its Position » Statement of
* Statement of Revenues,
Activities Expenditures &
Changes in Fund
Balances
Accaunting Accrual accounting | Maodified accrual
basis and and econamic accounting and
measurement | resources focus current financial
focus rescurces focus
Type of All assets and Only assets
asset/linhility | labilities, both expected to be used
information financial and up and lahilities
capital, short-term | that come due
and long-term during the year or
soon thereafter; na
capital assets
inchuded
Tvpe of All revenues and Revenues for which
inflow/eutflow | expenses during cash is received
information year, regardless of ¢ during or soon after
when cash is the end of the year,
received or paid expenditures when
goads or services
have been received
and payment is due
during the year or
soon thereafter




AUBURN AREA RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
For the Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2023

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

The remainder of this overview section of management’s discussion and analysis highlights the structure and
contents of each of the statements,

District-Wide Statements

The district-wide statements report information about the District as a whole using accounting methods
similar to those used by private-sector companies. The Statement of Net Position includes all of the District's
assets and liabilities. All of the current vear's revenues and expenses are accounted for in the statement of
activities regardless of when cash is received or paid.

The two district-wide statements report the District’s net position and how it has changed. Net position - the
difference between the District's assets and deferred outflows of resources anid liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources - is one way to measure the District’s financial health, or position.

¢ Over time, increases and decreases in the District's net position are an indicator of whether its financial
position is improving or deteriorating, respectively.

* To assess the overall health of the District, you need to consider additional nonfinancial factors such as
changes in the District’s demographics and the condition of buildings and other facilities.

¢ In the district-wide financial staternents, the District's activities are categorized as Governmental
Activities.  Most of the District’s basic services are included here, such as wead abatement, landscape
maintenance, and administration. State and local programs finance most of these activities,

Fund Financial Statements
The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the District’s most significant funds ~
not the District as a whole. Funds are accounting devices the District uses to keep track of specific sources of

funding and spending on particular programs. Some funds are required by State law and by granter
requirements.

The District has three funds, the Genera! Fund, the Atwood Park Fund, and the City Mitigation Fund.
3
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AUBURN AREA RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
For the Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2023

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS AND CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Analysis of Net Position

Table A-1: Condensed Statement of Net Position

March 31,2023 March 31,2022 Change
Assets;
Current assety $ 3638200 5 3824097 (185,897}
Neh-current assets 545,637 489,639 55,998
Capital assets, net 9,490,493 9,234,052 256,441
Total assels 13,674,330 13,847,788 126,542
Deferred outflows of resources 941,910 291,643 650,267
Liabilities:
Current liabilities 612,023 776,861 {164.838)
Nen-current Habilities 3372892 2,352,079 LO20.813
Total liabilities 3,984,915 3,128,940 855,975
Deferred inflows of resources 536516 337,604 198,912
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 7527493 7,178,167 349,326
Restricted 438,228 456,235 (18,007}
Unrestricted 2,129,088 2,738,485 {609,397)
Totai net position 3 10,094 8309 b3 10,372 887 § {278,078)

At the end of fiscal year 2023, the District shows a positive balance in its unvestricted net pesition of
$2,12%,088 that may be utilized in future years.



AUBURN AREA RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis {(Unaudited)
For the Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2023

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS AND CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION (continued)
Analysis of Revenues and Expenses

Table A-2: Condensed Statement of Activities

March 31,2023  March 31,2022 Change
Program revenues $ 1.765,15¢4 ) 1,862,435 - {97,281}
Expenses {6,280,314) (4,620,750} 11,659,564}
Net program expense , 14,515,160} [2,758,315) (1,756,845}
General revenues 4,237,082 3789512 447570
Change in net position (278,078) 1,031,197 {1.309.27%)
Net position - beginning of period 10,372,867 9,341,690 1,031,197

Net position - end of period

£

10,094,809 3 10,372,887 $ {278,073

The statement of activities shows how the government’s net position changed during the fiscal year, In the
case of the District. the operations of the District decreased by $278,078 during the fiscal year ended March
31,2023

Table A-3: Total Revenues

inrroase
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022 {Decrease)
Program revenues:
Charges for services § 1,322,869 $ 1,21587¢ $ 106,899
Rents and concessions 178,680 162,154 16,536
Grant and contribution revenue 263,595 484,311 {220,716}
Total program revenues 1,765,154 1,862.435 {97.281)
General revenues;
Property taxes 4,035,108 3,772,090 263018
Special assessments 27,807 26,885 22
Mitigation fees 85,000 22,000 63,500
Lease revenue 40,098 38,407 1,688
Investment earnings 17,660 {80.715) 98,375
Other revenue 31,412 101,845 20.567
Total general revenues 4,237,082 3788512 447 570
Total revenues % 6,002,216 3 5,651,947 5 350,289

Total revenues from all sources increased by 5.20%, or $350,289 from $5,651,947 to $6.002,236, from the
prior year, primarily due to an increase in property tax revenue of $263,018.
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AUBURN AREA RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
For the Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2023

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS AND CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION (continued)
Analysis of Revenues and Expenses (continued)

Table A-4: Total Expenses

increase
March 31,2023 March 31,2022 {Decrease)
Expenses:;

Salaries and wages $ 2.362,330 3 2249070 $ 113,260
Employee banefits 1,487,646 246,557 1.241.089
Program costs 281,891 220497 61,394
Materials and services 1,505,378 1.403,449 1¢1.527
Depreciation expense 600,189 455,765 144,424
Interest expense 42882 45412 {2,530)

Total expenses $ 6,280,314 b 4,620,750 3 1,659,564

Total expenses for the District’s operations increased by 35.92% or $1,659,564 from $4.620,750 to
$6,280,314 from the prior year, primarily due to an increase in employee benefits and depreciation expenses
of $1,241,089 and $144,424, respectively. The increase in employee benefits was largely non-cash expenses
related to the annual reevaluation of pension and other post-employment benefits liabilities.

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS FINANCIAL ANAYLSIS

The focus of the District's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and
balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the District's financing requirements,
In particular, the unreserved fund bolance may serve as a useful measure of the government’s net resources
for spending at the end of the fiscal year,

As of March 31, 2023, the District reported a total fund balance of $3.652,496. An amount of 3$919,112
constitutes the District's unassigned fund balance, which is available for future expenditures.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The final budgeted expenditures for the District at year-end were $256,924 more than actual. The variance is
principally due to over-budgating for Materials and Services. The final budgeted revenues for the District at
year-end were $43,227 less than actual. The variance s principally due to under-budgeting for Property tax
revenue,



AUBURN AREA RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
For the Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2023

CAPITAL ASSET ADMINISTRATION

Table A-5: Capital Assets at Year End, Net of Depreciation

Balance Balance
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Capital assets:
Non-depreciable assets $ 2,311,330 $ 4,325,082
Depreciable assets 18,724,263 15.879.886
Accumulated deprecistion {11,545,100) (30,976,916}
Total capital assets, net $ 5,490,493 $ 9,234.052

At the end of fiscal year 2023, the District’s investment in capital assets amounted to $9,490,493 {net of
accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes structures, improvements and
equipment. Major capital asset additions during the year included updates to the District's facilities and
various vehicle and equipment purchases totaling $856,631.

See Note 5 for further information on the District's capital assets.

DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Table A-6: Long-term Debt

Balance Balance
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022

Long-term debt:
Right-to-use asset financing $ 1,663,000 % 2,082,000

At the end of fiscal year 2023, the District’s long-term debt amounted to $1,963,000,

See Note 7 for further information on the District’s long-term debt.

FACTORS AFFECTING CURRENT FINANCIAL POSITION

Management is unaware of any item that would affect the current financial position.

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

The District’s basic financial statements are designed to present users with a general overview of the
District’s finances and to demonstrate the District's accountability. If you have any questions about the
repert or need additional information, please contact the District Manager at (530) 885-8461, 123 Recreation
[rive, Auburn, California 95603,



AUBURN AREA RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
Statement of Net Position
March 31,2023

(With Comparative Information as of March 31, 2022)

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and investments (Note 23
Accounts receivable
Due from other goveraments
Lease receivable (Note 43
Prapaid tems

Total current assets

Non-current pssets:
Restricted - cash and investments {Notes 2 and 3}
Lease receivable [Note 4}
Net pension asset {Note 9)
Capital assets - not being depreciated {Note 5}
Capital assets, net - being depreciated {Nate §)
Total nen-current assets

Total assets
DEFERBED QUITLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred mmounts related to net pension hability [Nowe %
Taotal deferred vutflows of resources

LIABILITIES
Current labilities:
Accounts payadle and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and reiared liabilities
Accrued interest gayable
Unearnsd revenue
Long-term Habilittes - dus within one vear
Compensated absences (Note 6)
Right-to-use asset financing (Note 73
Total current liabilities
Noacurrent Habilities:
Long-term Liabilities - due in mare than one year
Compensated absences {Note 6)
Right-1a-use asset financing (Note 7)
Net other post-emiployment benefits labiiny [Note 8]
Met pengion Hability (Nate 93
Total noncurrent tabilities
Total Habilities
Deferred amounts related to feases (Note 4)
Deferred amounts related to net OPER obligation {Note 8)
Deferred amounts related w net pension liability (Neate 9)

Total deferved inflows of resources
NET POSITION
Net investment in capitel assery (Note 10)

Restricted {Note 3}
Unrestricrad

Total net position

2023

2022

$ 3462382

5 3654383

48,595 42,138
26,708 68,209
19,045 .
69,470 57,365

3,638,200 3.824,097
438,228 456,233
107,409 .

. 33404
2311330 4,325,082
7.179,163 4,908,970
10,036,130 9,723,691
13.674,330 13,547,788
941,910 291643
941,910 291,643
192,830 292,766
81,194 161,619
10,404 11,035
114,569 116,501
91,026 75,840
122,000 119,000
612,023 776,861
91,025 75,839

1841,000 1.963.000
257.900 313,240

L182,967 -

3,372,892 1,352,073

1984915 3.128.940
142,748
177,485 105,154
216,283 232,330
536.516 337,604

7,527,493 7,178,167
436,228 456,233

2,120088 2,738,485

$ 10,09480%

$ 10,373887

The notes to financial stetements are an integral part of this statement.
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AUBURN AREA RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
Statement of Activities
For the Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2023

(With Comparative Information for the Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2022}

Governmental Activities
2023 2022

Expenses:
Recreation and park services:
Salaries and wages

W

2,362,330 § 2249070

Employee benefits 1,487,646 246,557
Program costs 281,891 220497
Materials and services 1.505,376 1.403 449
Depreciation expense 600,189 455,765
Interest expense 42,882 45,412
Total expenses 6,280,314 4,620,750
Program revenues:
Charges for services 1,322,869 1,.215970
Rents and concessions 178,690 162,154
Operating grants and contributions 263,595 484,311
Total program revenues 1,765,154 1,862,435
Net program expense {4.515.160) (2,758,315}
General revenues:
Property taxes 4,035,108 3772,090
Special assessments 27,807 26,885
Mitigation fees 85,000 22,000
Lease revenue 46,095 38,407
Investment sarnings 17,660 {80,715}
Other revenue 31,412 10,845
Total general revenues 4,237,082 3,789,512
Change in net position {278,078} 1.031.197
Net position:
Beginning of year 10,372,887 9,341,690
End of year 3 10,094,809 $ 10,372,887

The nutes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement



AUBURN AREA RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds

March 31,2023
Toetal
General Atwood Park City Mitigation Governmenrtal
ASSETS Fund Fund Fund Funds
Assets:
Cash and investments § 0 3313382 $ § 150020 §  34823R2
Restricted ~ cash and investments 438,228 £38228
Acrounts receivable 40,593 40,595
Due from other goveraments 26,708 - 26,708
Dug from other funds {Note 12) - 9.942 3942
Lease recevable 146,454 B 148,454
Prepatd items 69470 - £9.475
Total assets 3 4033817 & 9942 ) 150,020 § 2183979
Linhilities:
Accounts payable and acorued expenses $ 192,830 3 5 $ 192830
Averued payroll and related Habilities 81,194 - §1.194
Unearned revenue 114,569 - 114,569
Due o other funds (MNote 123 9,947 - 9,942
Total liabllities 398,535 - - 398,535
- BE h
Deferred amosnts related to leases 142 748 142,748
Fund balance: {Note 11)
Nonspendable 85470 . 69,470
Restricted 436,228 - - 438,228
Committed 1,788,589 . - 1,788,588
Assigned 257,136 4.942 150,020 £17,098
Unassigned 939,112 - - 939142
Yotal fund balance 3492534 9,942 156,020 3652496
Total lHabilities, deferred inflows of resources and
fund balance 3 4033817 3 9,942 % 150,020 § 4193779

The notes to financial statements are an integrai part of this statement.



AUBURN AREA RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position
March 31,2023

Fund Balance of Governmental Funds 3 3652498

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the ststement of net position are differsnt because;
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial resources and, therefore,

are not reported in the governmental funds balance sheet. However, the statement of net
position includes those assets as capital assets,

9.490.493

Deferred sutflows of resources used in governmental activities are not current finane:al

resources and, therefore, are not reportad in the governmental funds balance sheet, However,

the statement of net position includes those deferred outfiows of resources. 941,910

Leng-term Habdities applicable to the District are not due and payabie in the current period and

accordingly are not reported ag fund liabilities. Al liabilities, both current and leng-term, are

reperted in the statement of net position as follows:
Accrued interest pavable (10,4043
Compensated absences {182351)
Right-te-use asset financing {1.963,000)
Net pension Lability {1.1B2947)
Net CPER hability (257300

Deferred inflows of resources used in governmental activities are not current financial resources

and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds balance sheet. However, the

statement of pet position includes those deferrad inflows of respurces. {393,768
Total adjustments 6442313

Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 10,094,809
oo S

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



AUBURN AREA RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2023

Total
General Arwood Park City Mitigation  Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds
Revenues:
Froperty taxes $ 4035108 i - 13 . 3 4,035,108
Charges for servicss 1,322,869 . . 1,322.869
Rents and concessions 178,690 - - I7R.6%0
Operating grants and comributions 763,595 . : 263,558
Special assessments - PR . 27,807
Mitigation fees 845,000 - : 85,060
Lease revenus 44,095 - - 440,095
Investment earnings 18,986 B {1,328} 17663
Other revenus 31412 - 31412
Total revenues 5975755 27.807 {1,326} 002236
Expenditures:
Carrent operations:
Salaries and wages 2,323,874 8,084 - 2,331,958
Empiovee benelis 920,718 - . 920,718
Program costs 2 R:H B - 281,89
Materials and services 1,491,586 13,7%8 - 1505376
Capital qutlay 856,630 . - B56,4830
Debt service:
Principal payments 119,600 - - 112,000
Interest payments 43513 - . 43,513
Total expenditures 5037212 21874 - 6059086
Excess{Deficit) of revenues over {expenditures) (81,4571 5813 {1,326} {56,850)
Other financing sources{uses);
Transfers infout] (Note 12) 54,281 1,580 {55,861]
Total other financing sources{uses) 54,281 1,580 1558613
Change in fund balance {7178} 7,513 (57.187) (568507
Fund Balanee:
Beginning of vear 3,499,718 2,424 207257 3,709 346
End of year § 3492534 § 9,942 5 150,020 § 3651495

The notes to financial stavements are an integrel part of this statement.



AUBURN AREA RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities
For the Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2023

Net Change in Fund Balance - Govermmental Funds $ {56,850}
Ampunt reported for governmental acuvities in the statement of activities are different becauss:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditares. However, in the statement of
activities the cost of those assets s allocated over their estimated useful fives and reported as
depreciation expense:

Capital outiay B54,630
Depreciation sxpense {600,189

Some expenses reported m the statement of activities do not require the use of current Anancial
resvurces angd therefore are not reported s§ expenses in governmental fuads as follows:

Netchange in acerued intersst 831

Netchange in compensated sbsences {30370
Met change in OPER Lability and related deferrad resources (16,8913
Net change in net pension lability and related deferred rasources {530,037y

Principal repayment of long-terr debt is reported as an expendilure in governmental funds.
Howsever, principal repayments reduce labilides o the statement of net nosition and do nat

result in expenses in the statement of activities, 119,000
Total adjustments [221.228)
Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities § 278078

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this stotement



AUBURN AREA RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31,2023

NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Description of Organization
The Auburn Area Recreation and Park District (District) was formed as an independent special district to
provide quality leisure services, park, programs, and facilities; address the recreational needs of all ages;

promote positive customer service, fiscal responsibility, and accountability; and enhance and promote
persanal well-being and a sense of community.

The District is the primary governmental unit based on the foundation of a separately elected five-
member board, with each member serving 4-year terms. The Board has decision-making authority, the
power to designate management, the responsibility to significantly influence operations and primary
accountability for fiscal matters,

B. Reporting Entity
A reporting entity is comprised of the primary government, component units, and other crganizations
that are included to ensure the financial statements are not misleading. The primary government of the
District consists of all funds, departments, and agencies that are not legally separate from the District.

Compotient units are legally separate organizations for which the District is financially accountable,
Component units may also include organizations that are fiscally dependent on the District, in that the
District approves their budget, the issuance of their debt or the levying of their taxes. In addition,
component units are other legally separate organizations for which the District is not financially
accountable but the nature and significance of the organization's relationship with the District is such
that exclusion would cause the District’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete,

The District has identified the following organizations that are required to be reported as component
unis,

The Friends of the Auburn Area Recreaticn and Park, Inc. (the foundation) was created as a non-profic
entity under section 501{c){3) to receive donations. obtain grants. and conduct fundraising events to
generate revenues that will enhance the District’s recreation programs. The Foundation is reported as a
blended component unit of the District because the District's governing body is also the governing body
of the Foundation. The Foundation's funds are reported as restricted assets on the Districts fnancial
statements as & component of the general fund as of the vear ended December 31, 2022, since the
Foundation has a different fiscal year end than the District.



AUBURN AREA RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31,2023

NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

€. Basis of Presentation, Basis of Accounting

1

Basis of Presentation

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The statement of net position and the statement of activities display information about the primary
government (the District) and its compenent units, These statements include the financial activities
of the overall government. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double-counting of internal
activities.  Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental
revenues, and other nonexchange transactions.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues
for each function of the District's governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are
specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a
particular function. Program revenues include {a) charges paid by the recipients of goods or services
offered by the programs and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Hevenues that are not classified as
program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues.

Major Governmental Funds
The District maintains the following major governmental funds:

General Fund: This fund is used to account for all the financial resources of the District, except
thase required to be accounted for in another fund when necessary.

In addition to the General Fund, the District also has special revenue funds used to account for the
proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes
that are non-major funds:

Atwood Park Special Revenue Fund: This fund is used to account for resources received and
expenditures of fees levied on property owners of the District that specifically restricted for
instalfation, maintenance, and servicing of public facilities within Atwood Park.

City Mitigation Special Revenue Fund: This fund is used to account for resources received and
expenditures of fees levied on property owners of the District that specifically restricted for
instaliation, maintenance, and servicing of public facilities within the City of Auburn.

-5 -



AUBURN AREA RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31,2023

NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
C. Basis of Presentation, Basis of Accounting {continued)
2. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The gevernment-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recerded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related tash fows take place.
Nonexchange transactions, in which the District gives [or receives) value without directly receiving
{ur giving) equal value in exchange, include property taxes, grants, entitlements, and donations. On
an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility
requirements have been satisfied.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

Governmental funds are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting, Under this method, revenues are recognized when measurable
and available. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for
principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences,
which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured. Capital asset acquisitions are
reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and financing
from capital leases are reported as other financing sources.

3. Revenues - Exchange and Non-Exchange Transactions
Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and receives essentially
equal value, is recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange takes place. On a modified accrual
basis, revenue is recorded in the fiscal year in which the rescurces are measurable and become
available. Available means that the resources will be collected within the current fiscal year.
Generally, available is defined as collectible within 610 days.

Nen-exchange transactions, in which the District receives value without directly giving egual value in
return, include property taxes, certain grants, entitlements, and donations. Revenue from property
taxes is recognized in the fiscal year in which the taxes are received. Revenue from certain grants,
entitlernents, and donations is recognized ir. the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have
been satisfied. Eligibility requirements include time and purpose requirements. On a modified
accrual basis, revenue from non-exchange transactions must aiso be available before it can be
recognized.



AUBURN AREA RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
Naotes to Financial Statements
March 31,2023

NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net
Pasition

1

3.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the District considers all highly liguid investments with
a maturity of three months or less, when purchased, to be cash equivalents. Cash deposits are
repaorted at carrying amount, which reasonably estimates fair value.

Lease Receivable and Deferred Inflows of Resources

The primary objective is to enhance the relevance and consistency of infarmation about the gavernments’
leasing activities, As a lessor, the District is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of
resources at the commencement of the lease term, with certain exceptions. The District’s lease receivable is
measured at the present value of the lease payments expected to be received during the lease term. Under
the lease agreement, the District may receive variable lease payments that are dependent upon the lessee's
revenue. The variable payments are recorded as an inflow of resources in the period the payment is
received. A deferred inflow of resources is recorded for the lease. The deferred inflow of respurces is
measured at the value of the lease receivable in additdon to any payments received at or before the
commencement of the lease term that relate to future periods, The deferred inflow of rescurces is amortized
on g straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Prepaid ttems

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs or deposits applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid items in both the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Investments

Investments are reported at fair value except for short-term investments, which are reported at cost,
which approximates fair value. Cash deposits are reported at carrying amount, which reasonably
estimates fair value. Investments in governmental investment pools are reported at fair value based
on the fair value per share of the pool's underlving portfolio.

in accordance with fair value measurements, the District categovizes its assets and liabilities
measured at fair value into a three-level hierarchy based on the priovity of the inputs to the valuation
technigue used to determine fair value. The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1) and the lowest priority to
unchservable inputs (Level 3). If the inputs used in the determination of the fair value measurement
fall within different levels of the hierarchy, the categorization is based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement.

Financial assets and liabilities recorded on the balance sheet are categorized based on the inputs to
the valuation technigues as follows:

Level I - Inputs that reflect unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical investments,
such as stocks, corporate and government bonds. The District has the ability to access the holding
and quoted prices as of the measurement date.

Level 2 - Inputs, other than quoted prices, that are observable for the asset or liability either directly
or indirectly, including inputs from markets that are not considered o be active.

-90-



AUBURN AREA RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31,2023

NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

E. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liahilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net
Position

4.

Investments {continued)

Level 3 - Inputs that are unobservable. Uncbservable inputs reflect the District’s own assumptions
about the factors market participants would use in pricing an investment and is based on the best
information available in the circumstances.

Capital Assets

Capital assets are stated at cost or at their estimated fair value at date of donation. [t is the District’s
policy to capitalize assets costing over $3,000. The provision for depreciation is computed using the
straight-line method over the estimated service lives of the capital assets.

Estimated service lives for the District's classes of assets ave as follows;

Descrintion Estimated Lives

Buildings and improvements 20 years
Furniture and equipment 3-10 years
Vehicles 8 years

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position reports a separate section for deferred cutfiows of
resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred sutflows of resources, represents 3
consumption of net assets that apphies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an outflow
of resources {expense /expenditure) until then.

In addition to Labilities, the statement of net pasition reports a separate section for deferred inflows
of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an
acquisition of net assets that applies to a future period and will not be recognized as an inflow of
resources {revenue} until that rime.

Unearned Revenue
Unearned revenue represents fees recetved prior to services or events taking place.

Compensated Absences

The liability for compensated absences reported in the government-wide statements consists of
unpaid, accumulated annual and vacation leave balances. The liability has been calculated using the
vesting methad, in which leave amounts for both employees who currently are eligible to raceive
termination payments and other employees who are expected to become eligible in the future 1o
receive such payments upan termination are included.



AUBURN AREA RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31,2023

NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net
Position {continued)

Q.

10.

11.

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources
related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the
District’s California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) plan and addition to/deductions
from the Plans fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported
by CalPERS. For this purpose, benefit payments [including refunds of employee contributions) are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at
fair value.

The following timeframes are used for pension reporting:

Valuation Date June 30, 2021
Measurement Date June 30, 2022
Measurement Period July 1, 2021 to june 30, 2022

Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPER)

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related
to OPEB, and OPERB expense, information about the fiduciary net positicn of the District’s Retiree
Benefit Plan [OPERB Plan) and additions to/deductions from the OPEB Plans’ fiduciary net position
have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the OPEB Plan. For this purpose, the
OPEB Plan recognizes henefit payments when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.
Investments are reported at fair value,

The following timeframes are used for pension reporting:

Valuation Date March 31, 2022
Measurement Date March 31, 2022
Measurement Period April 1, 2022 o March 31, 2023

Interfund Transactions
Operating transfers are transactions to allocate resources from one fund to another fund not
contingent on the incurrence of specific expenditures in the receiving fund. Interfund
transfers are generally recorded as operating transfers in and operating transfers our in the
same accounting period.

Transactions between funds that represent lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end
of a fiscal year are referred o as due vo/from other funds,



AUBURN AREA RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31,2023

NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net
Position {continued)

12, NetPosition

13

¥

Net position is classified into two components: net investment in capital assets; restricted; and
unrestricted. These classifications are defined as follows:

+ Netinvestment in capital assets - This component of net position consists of capital assets net
of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages,
notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement
of thase assets. [f there are significant unspent related debt proceeds at year-end, the porticn of
the debt attributable to the unspent proceeds are not included in the calculation of net
investment in capital assets. Rather, that portion of the debt is included in the same net position
camponent as the unspent proceeds.

* Restricted net position - This component of net position consists of constraints placed on net
position use through external constraints imposed by creditors (such as debt covenants),
grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or constraints imposed by
law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

* Unrestricted net position - This component of net position cansists of net pesition that does
not meet the definition of net investment in capital assets,

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District's policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Fund Balances
The fund balance for governmental funds is reported in classifications based on the extent to which

the government is hound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts in those
funds can be spens.

Nonspendable: Fund balance is reported as nonspendable when the resources cannot be spent
because they are either in a nonspendable form ar legally or centractually required to be maintained
intact. Resources in nonspendable form include inventaries and prepaid assets.

Restricted: Fund balance is reported as restricted when the constraints placed on the use of
resources are either externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of
other governments; or imposed by law through constitutional provision or by enabling legislation

Committed: The District's highest decision-making level of authority rests with the District’s Board.
Fund balance is reported as committed when the Board passes a resolution that places specified
constraints on how resources may be used. The Beard can modify or rescind a commitment of
resources through passage of a new resolution,

Assigned: Resources that are constrained by the District’s intent ta use them for a specific purpose,
but are neither restricted nor committed, are reported as assigned fund balance. Intent may be
expressed by either the Board, committees (such as budget or finance), or officials to which the
Board has delegated authority.

-8 =



AUBURN AREA RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31,2023

NOTE 1 - DESCRIFTION OF ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

13. Fund Balances (continued)

Unassigned: Unassigned fund balance represents fund balance that has not been restricted,
committed, or assigned and may be utilized by the District for any purpose. When expenditures are
incurred, and both restricted and unrestricted resources are available, it is the District's policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources in the order of committed, assigned, and then
unassigned, as they are needed,

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
tabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenditures during the reported period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

Property Taxes

Froperty taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1, sach year. Secured property
taxes are levied on July 1 and are payable in two installments, on Deceruber 10 and April 10, The County
of Placer County Assessur's Office assesses all real and personal property within the County each year.

Property tax in California is levied in accordance with Article 134 of the State Constitution at one {196] of
countywide assessed valuations. The Placer County Treasurer's Office remits an undisclosed portion of
the one (1%} current and delinquent property tax collections to the District throughout the yvear.

New Pronouncements - Governmental Accounting Standards Board {GASB)

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2023, the District has implemented a new pronouncement as
follows:

GASB Statement No. 87 - Leases

The objective of this Statement is to better meet the information needs of financial statement users by
improving accounting and financlal reporting for leases by governments. This Statement increases the
usefulness of governments' financial statements by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and
liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of
resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the contract. The requirements of
this Statement were effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019, However, GASS
Statement No. 95 postponed its effective date by 18 menths due to the COVID-19 pandemic and its effect
on the audit/accounting industry. The District adopted the Statement as of April 1, 2022, See Note 4 for
the effect of this Statement,

-~ 94 -



AUBURN AREA RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31,2023

NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Cash and investments as of March 31 were classified on the statement of net position as follows:

Description Balance
Cash and investments $ 3,462,382
Restricted cash and investments 438,228
Total cash and investments $ 3,900,610

Cash and investments as of March 31 consisted of the following:

Description Balance
Cash on hand 3 580
Demand deposits with financial institutions 322,154
Deposits with Placer County Treasury Investment Pool {PCTIP) 3,139,648
Investments held by pension trust 438,228
Total cash and investments 3 3,900,610

Demand Deposits with Financial institutions

At March 31, 2023, the carrying amount of the District's demand deposits were $322.154, and the financial
institution’s balance was $372,873. The net difference represents outstanding checks, deposits-in-transit
and/or other reconciling items between the financial institution's balance and the District's balance for sach
year.

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits

Custadial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Authority's deposits may not be
returned to it. The District does not have a policy for custodial credit risk for deposits. Cash balances held in
banks are insured up to $250,000 by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC] and are
collateralized by the respective financial institutions. In addition, the California Government Code requires
that a financial institution secure deposits made by State or local governmental units by pledging securities in
an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under State law (unless so waived by the
governmental unit). The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110
percent of the total amount deposited by the public agencies. California law also allows financial institutions
to secure public deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150 percent of the
secured public deposits and letters of credit issued by the Federal Home Loan Bank of $an Francisco having a
value of 105 percent of the secured deposits.



AUBURN AREA RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31,2023

NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS {continued)

Placer County Treasury Investment Pool (PCTIP)

The District is a voluntary participant in the Placer County Treasury Investment Pool {PCTIP) pursuant to
Government Code Section 53694. The cash flow needs of participants are monitored daily to ensure that
sufficient Liquidity is maintained to meet the needs of those participants. At the time deposits are made, the
Placer County Treasurer may require the depositing entity to provide annual cash flow projections or an
anticipated withdrawal schedule for deposits in excess of $1 million. Projections are performed no less than
semi-annually. In accerdance with Government Code Section 27136, all request for withdrawal of funds for
the purpose of investing or deposits the funds elsewhere shall be evaluated to ensure the propoesed
withdrawal will not adversely affect the principal deposits of the other participants. As of March 31, 2023. the
District’s cash balance in PCTIP was $3,139,648,

Investments
The District’s investments as of March 31, 2023 were as follows:

Mamfig
Measurement Credit Total 25w 120
Type of Investments input Rating Fair Value Months
CEPPT - Money marks: mutual funds Level 2 AAR 3 438228 3 438,278
Total investimenty $ 438224 $ 438,220

Authorized Investments and Investment Policy

The District has adopted an investment policy directing the Fiscal Officer to deposit funds in financial

institutions o purchases financial investments in accordance with California Government Code 53600-53610
as follows;

Maximum Maximuam
Authorized Maximum Percentage Investment
investment Type Maturity of Partiolio in One Issuer

U.S. Treasury Obligations S-years None None
US. Government Sponsored Agency Securities S-years Mone None
State of California Obligations S-years None None
CA Locai Agency Obligations S-years None None
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit (Negotiable D) S-years 30% 3%

Ch Placement Service S-yaars 30% None
Banker's Acceptances 180 days 4% 30%
Reverse Purchase Agreement 92 days 20% None
Repurchase Agreements 1-year Nene None
Commercial Papar 270 days 28% 10%
Medium- Term Notes S-years 30% Nore
California Local Agency Investment Pund [LAIF) N/A Mone None
County Pooled Investment Funds N/A None None
joint Powers Authority Paol HiA Hone MNone
Mutual Funds and Money Marke: Mutual Funds Mia 20% 10%
Collateralized Bank Deposits S-years Hone None
Bank/Time Deposits S-years Mone None



AUBURN AREA RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31,2023

NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

Investment in Pension Trust

The District established a Section 115 trust account with CaPERS entitled California Employers’ Pension
Prefunding Trust (CEPPT) to hold assets that are legally restricted for use in administering the District's
pension plan. Trust account holders can select from two strategy options for investments. The District has
invested in both the asset allocation Strategy | and 2 portfolios. Both portfolios seek to provide capital
appreciation and income, but the Strategy 1 portfolio has a higher allocation to equities than bonds. The

CEPPT Strategy 1 and Strategy 2 portfolio consists of the following asset classes and corresponding
benchmarks:

Strategy 1 Stratagy 3
Targer Target Targer
Asget Clagy Allacstinn allecataon e Range Henchmark
Glisbat Equaty 37% 21% ] 5% MSCEAR Country Werld Index [MI (et}
Fined Income H94% 1% -7 Bhs Bloambery Barclays U5 Aggregate Band Index
Treasury inflaton-Protected Securitios (TIPS 5% P - 3% Bloombierg Barclays US. TIPS index, Series L
Real Estote bventment Trusts (REITS) 14% Py TR FTSE EFRASNAREIT Developed Index {net}
Cash o) (%5 *f- 2% 91 Day Treasury Bil
10069 16055

Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the
investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating

organization. As of March 31, 2023, the District’s cash balance in the PCTIP was rated by Standard & Poor's as
AAAL/S1,

interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. Generally, the fair values of investments with longer maturities have greater sensitivity 1o
changes in market interest rates. The District’s investment policy follows the Code as it relates to limits on
Investment maturities as a means of managing exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest
rates. The District has elected to use the segmented time distribution method of disclosure for the maturities
of its investments as related to interest rate risk as noted in the previous table.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The District’s investment policy contains no limitations on the amount that can be invested in any une
governmenta agency or non-governmental issuer bevond that stipulated by the California Government Code.
There were no investments in any one governmental or non-governmental issuer that represented 5% or
more of the District’s total investments except for those in the PETIP,

NOTE 3 - RESTRICTED ASSETS

Restricted - cash and investments as of March 31+ consisted of the following:

Description March 31, 2023
Investments held by pension trust $ 438,224
Total restricted - net position 3 438228

The District's restricted assets are funds deposited into a Section 115 plan trust.



AUBURN AREA RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31,2023

NOTE 4 - LEASE RECEIVABLE AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES - LEASES

Changes in the District’s lease receivable for the year ended March 31, 2023, was as follows:

Balance Balance
Description April 1,2022 Additions Deletions March 31,2023
Cetlular antenna site rental $ - % 167393 % (30,125 § 137,268
Building space lease - ) 15901 (65,7153 9,184
$ - $ 183,294 § (358407 § 146,454

The District is reporting a total lease receivable of $146,454 and a total related deferred inflows of resources
of $142,748 for the year ending March 31, 2023. Also, the District is reporting total lease revenue of $40,095
and interest revenue of $3,331 related to lease payments received for the years ending March 31, 2023.

The leases held by the District do not have implicit rates of return, therefore the District used their
incremental borrowing rate of 2.00% to discount the lease revenue to the net present value. In some cases,
leases contain termination clauses. In these cases, the clause requires the lessee or lessor to show cause to
terminate the lease. Also, certain leasing-types are considered “volatile leases.” Those volatile leases were not
extended past their initial lease period for financial statement recognition due to their volatility.

Cellular Antenna Site Rentul

The District, on April 1, 2022, renewed a continuocus lease with Verizon Wireless for 60 months as lesser for
the use of 3 cellular antenna site rental. An initial lease receivable was recarded in the amount of $167,393, As
of March 31, 2023, the value of the lease receivable was $137.268. The lease is required to make monthly
fixed payments of $2,706 for the first 12-month period, then increase 3.0% on July 1sof each year. The lease
has an interest rate of 2.00%. The value of the deferred inflow of resources was $91,012 as of March 31, 2023
The District recognized lease revenue of $32,992 and interest revenue of $3,075 during the fiscal year. The
lessee will be evaluated by the District for future extensions after the completion of this lease period. Since
this is considered a volatile lease only this lease period has been recognized.

Building Space Lease

The District, on April 1, 2022, renewed a continuous lease with a Preschool for 27 months as lessor for the
use of building/office space. An initial lease receivable was recorded in the amount of $15,901. As of March
31, 2023, the value of the lease receivable was $9,186. The lease is required to make menthly fixed payments
of $554 for the first 12-month period, then increase 6.5% on July 1s of each year. The lease has an interest
rate of 2.00%. The value of the deferred inflow of resources was $8,834 as of March 31, 2023, The District
recognized lease revenue of $7,103 and interest revenue of $256 during the Rscal year. The lessee will be
evaluated by the District for future extensions after the completion of this lease period. Since this is
considered a volatile lease only this lease period has been recognized.
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AUBURN AREA RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
Muarch 31,2023

NOTE 4 - LEASE RECEIVABLE AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES - LEASES (continued)

Minimum future lease receipts for the next four fiscal years are as follows:

Fiscal Year Principai interest Total
2024 H 39045 % 3332 0§ 42,377
2025 35,293 1,814 37,107
2026 35,154 1,123 36,277
2027 36,962 404 37.366
Total 146,454 &% 6,673 & 153,127

Current {35,045)

Long-term 3 107,409

procen e

Changes in the District's deferred inflows of resources related to leases for March 31, 2023, is as follows:

Balance Balance
Description April 1, 2022 Additions Delations March 31, 2023
Cellular antanna site rental $ -3 167,393 % 31479 3§ 133914
Building space lease - 15901 {7067 8,834
§ - % 183294 § (40,5457 § 142,748
Lo

The amounts reported as deferred inflows of resources related to leases for the year ended March 31, 2023,
will be amortized in future periods as follows:

Amortization Period Deferred Inflows
Fiscal Year Ended March 31 of Resources

2024 $ 40 546

2025 35,244

2026 33479

2027 33479

Total 3 142,748
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NOTE 5 ~ CAPITAL ASSETS

Changes in capital assets for the year were as follows:

Balance Additions/ Deletions/ Balance
April 1, 2022 Transters Transfers March 31,2023
Nor-deprecishle capital aasets:
Land $ 1970545 H - § - H LA70 544
Canstruction-in-process 2,334,535 655,012 [2.668,7641 340,784
Tetal non-depreciable capital assews 4 325082 655,012 {2668,764) 2,311,330
Depreciably capita) assets,
Buildings and improvements L4134 508 152006 {14.767) L4241.747
Furniture and exuipment 1506415 2671769 {11,238} 4,171,948
Vehicles 259 963 40,607 . 310570
Total depracishle capiral assets 15879986 2870,383 (26,605} 18,724,263
Accumulated depreciation
Bulldings and Improvements {10,032.807% (45%7,018] 14,767 {10.473.058)
Farniture and squipment {¥25862) £134,121) 11,238 [848,745)
Vehicles (212,247} {9,030 - [221.387)
Total sccumudatad depreciation {10.970.916} (600,189} 26,0035 {1L545,100
Total depreciable zapaal assers, net 4308970 279,193 : 7179183
Fotal capital assets, net 5 2,234,052 5 2,925,205 1 [2H087647 & 5450493

NOTE 6 - COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The changes to the compensated absences balance for the year were as follows:

Halance Balance Current Long-term
April 1,2022 Additians Delations March 31,2023 Portion Portion
5 151678 $ 188,942 & {1585707 & 182,051 § 91,026 3 21025

NOTE 7 - RIGHT-TO-USE ASSET LEASE FINANCING

Changes in right-to-use asset lease financing amounts for the year were as follows:

Balance Balance Current Loag-term
April 1,2022 Additions Deletions March 31, 2023 Portion Portion
3 2,082,000 $ - & (119000} 3 1963000 13 122,060 $ 1841000

On january 1, 2021, the District executed a lease agreement with CSDA Finance Corporation in the amourt of
$2,190,000, which was subsequently assigned to Sterling National Bank, to finance the design and build of
energy conservation measures for the District. Principal and interest payments of are due semi-annually on
lanuary 1 and July 1 through January 1, 2037, The lease bears an interest rate of 2.12%. The financing was
secured as a result of the Design-Build Energy Services Agreement that the District entered into with Centrica
Business Solutions Services Inc. to design, construct and install energy conservation measures into the
District’s facilities. In the event of default, the lessor may exercise any and all remedies availabie under law or
granted under the agreement.
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NOTE 7 - RIGHT-TO-USE ASSET LEASE FINANCING (continued)

Annual debt service requirements are as follows:

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2024 % 122,000 $ 40,969 -1 162,969
2025 125,000 38,361 163,361
2026 127,000 35718 162,711
2027 130,000 32.998 162,998
2028 133,000 30,221 163,221

2029-2033 705,000 107,580 812,580

2034-2037 821,000 29,967 650,967
Total 1,963,000 $ 315,807 $ 4,278,807

Current {122,000}
Long-term § 1,841,000

NOTE 8 - NET OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS {OPEE) LIABILITY

Summary
The following balances on the balance sheet will be addressed in this footnote as foliows:

Description 2023
Net other post-employment benefits obligation $ 257.500
OPEB related deferred inflows 177,488

A. General Information about the OPEB Plan

Plan Description

The District administers a single employer defined benefit healthcare plan (the Retiree Health Plan). The
District currently provides retiree health benefits to eligible employees. The District sponsors healthcare
coverage under the California Public Employees Medical and Haospital Care Act ("PEMHCA”), commonly
referred to as PERS Health, PEMHCA provides health insurance through a variety of Health Maintenance
Organization (HMO) and Preferred Provider Organization {PPO) options.

Employees are eligible for District-paid retiree medical benefits upon attainment of age 50 and five vears of
service, The District contributes the PEMHCA minimum under the unequa! method (5% times nursber of
years the District has been in PEMHCA). The District’s non-represented group joined PEMHCA in 2015,
Employees must work more than 30 hours 2 week to be eligible for benefits. The statutory minimum used to
designate the District's PEMHCA requirement was $149.00 per month for 2022. The $149.00 increased to
$151.00 per month in 2023 and is scheduled by law to be indexed with medicai inflation {CPI),

Effective August 1, 2020, the District amended the plan to include represented employees.
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NOTE 8 - NET OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPER) LIABILITY {continued)

A. General Information about the OPEB Plan (continued)

Participants
As of March 31, 2023 measurement date, the following members were part of the plan:

2023
inactive plan members or beneficiartes currently receiving benefit payments 2
Inactive plan members entitied to but not yet receiving benefit payments -
Active plan members 31
Total 33

Funding Policy

The contribution requirements of Plan members and the District are established and may be amended by the
District’s Board of Directors subject to the District’s Memorandums of Understanding with bargaining units.
The required contribution is based on actual retiree health insurance premium payments required under the
Plan. The District has made no discretionary payments into a trust.

Contributions

Benefit provisions and contribution requirements are established and may be amended through agreements
and memorandums of understanding between the District and its employees. The plan does not require
employee contributions. Administrative costs of this plan are financed by the District. For fiscal year ended
March 31, 2023, the measurement period, the District's contributions totaled $2,107,

B. Net OPEB Liability

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2023, the District's total OPEE liability was measured as of March 31,
2023 and was determined by an actuarial valuation as of March 31, 2022, A summary of the principal
assumptions and methods used to determine the total OPEB liability are noted below.

Actuarial Assumptions

The total OPEB liability in the March 31, 2022 actuarial valuation was determined using the following
actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified:

Yalyauon Date March 31,2032
Measurement Date March 31,2083
Actwarial Cost Methad Entry age rormal. bovel percentage of payrafl
Astet Valuation Method Marietvalue of asse1x 25 of che measurement siate
Actuarial Avsumphians:

Discount Rate 178%

Lung-Tocrn Brpovied
Ranz of Return on lnwestments
inflaton

1

8%

Pro<65 - 6.00% wending down .25% arnualiy
e $.25% by 2035 and later
Post-83 - 4 50% for 2023-2069, 4.00% for 2070

and later
Morbidoy CalPERS 2071 Stugy
Maetaly CalPERS 2641 Sty
Pusabalivy Mot vslued
Retrerment 2021 CAWERS Public Agency Miscellensous

eaparience sudy:
2.5% 55 and 2% @42
Pepcent Married BU% of fature revirses would enroll  spotse
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NOTE 8 - NET OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BEMEFITS (OPEB) LIABILITY {continued)

B. Net OPEB Liability {continued)

Discount Rate

For OPEB Plans That Are Not Administered through Trusts that meet the Criteria in Paragraph 4, GASB 75
requires a discount rate that is a yield or index rate for 20-year, tax-exempt general cbligation municipal
bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. The discount rate used to measure the District's Total OPER
liability is based on the Fidelity GO AA 20 Year Municipa! Index. The discount rate was increased from 7.83%
to 3.78% for the year ended March 31, 2023,

€. Changesin the Net OPEB Liability
The changes in the total OPEB Liability for fiscul year March 31, 2023, were as follows:

Increase [Decrease)

Total Plan Fiduciary Net
OPER Liability Net Position OPEB Liability

Balance at April 1, 2022 (Measurement date March 31,2022) $ 313240 3% - % 313,240
Changes for the year:

Service cost 26,643 - 46,643

Interest 8,283 - 8,243

infferences in experience {24,331) . {20,331}

Changes in agsumption {67,828} . (67,828}

Empleyer contributions .

Met investment income - .

Benefit payments {2,107 - (4,107}

Netchanges {58,340 . {55,340}

Balance at March 31, 2023 {Measurement date March 31, 2023} $ 257600 % -8 257,500

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the District, as well as what the District's total OPER tiability
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower ar 1 percentage point
higher than the current discount rate.

Far the fiscal year ended March 31, 2023:

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
2.78% 3.78% 4.78%
3 302343 % 257900 3 221514
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NOTE 8 - NET OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) LIABILITY (continued)

C. Changes in the Net OPER Liability (continued)

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in Medical Trend Rates

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the District, as well as what the District's total OPEB lability
would be if it were calculated using medical trend rates that are 1-percentage point lower.

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2023:

Healtheare Cost
5.0% Decreasing  6.0% Decreasing  7.0% Decreasing
to 4.25% to 5.25% 10 6.25%
$ 200418  § 257900 3§ 321924

D. OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB
For the year ended March 31, 2023, the District recognized OPEB expense of $70,489, At March 31, 2023, the

District reported deferred cutflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the
following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

Account Description of Resources of Resources
Changes in assumptions 3 =% {158,742}
Differences between expected and actual experience - (18,743}
Total deferred outflows/{inflows) of resources 3 - % {177,483}

The differences between projected and actual earnings on plan investments is amortized over five years. The
District reported $0 as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the
measurement date that will be recognized as a reduction of the total OPEB liability in the year ending March
31, 2023, Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related 1o OPEB will be recognized as OPEB expense as follows:

Deferred
Amortization Period Outfiows/{Inflows)
Fiscal Year Ended March 31 of Resources

2024 g [15.928)

2025 {15,928)

126 {15,928)

2027 {15,928)

2028 [15,928)

Thereafter {97.845]

Total L (1rraes)

At March 31, 2023, the District had no outstanding amount of contributions to the OPEB plan required for the year
ended March 31, 2023
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NOTE 9 - PEMSION PLAN

Summary
The following balances on the balance sheet will be addressed in this footnote as follows:

Description 2023
Pension related deferred autflows § 941,910
Net pension Hability 1,182,967
Pension related deferred inflows 216,283

The net pension liability balances have a Measurement Date of March 31, 2022 which is rolled-forward for
the District’s fiscal year ended March 31, 2023,

Qualified employees are covered under a multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan maintained by
agencies of the State of California known as the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS), or
"The Plan™.

The Plan
The District has engaged with CalPERS to administer the following pension plans for its employees
{members):

Migcellaneous Plans

Classic PEPRA

Tierl Tier 2

Priorto On or after
Hire date January 1, 2013 january 1, 2013
Benefit formala 2.0% @& 55 0% @62
Henefit vesting schedule S-years of service S-years of service
Hepefits paymenis monthly for life monthiy for life
Retirement age 50463 &up 52-67 % up
Monthly bensfits, as a % of eligible compensatinn 192% 10 2.418% 10% 10 2.5%
Required member contribution rates 7.000% 6.750%
Required employer contribution rates - April to June 2022 11.060% 7.730%
Required employer contribution rates - fuly 2022 10 March 2023 110608 7.760%,

A.  General Information about the Pension Plan

Plan Description, Benefits Provided and Employees Covered

The Plan is a cost-sharing multipie-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the California
Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS). The District contributes to the miscellaneous risk post
within the Plan, A full description of the pensien plan benefit provisions, assumptions for funding purposes
but not accounting purpeses, and membership information is listed in the March 31, 2617 Annual Actuarial
Valuation Repert. This report is a publicly available valuation report that can be obtained at CalPERS website
under Forms and Publications.
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NOTE 9 - PENSION PLAN {continued)

A. General Information about the Pension Plan (continued)

The California Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act (PEPRA), which took effect in January 2013, changes
the way CalPERS retirement benefits are applied, and places compensation limits on members. As a result of
these changes since PEPRA's adoption in january 2013, the District now has two unigue CalPERS plans to
which it makes contributions within the miscellaneous risk pool: the “classic” plan, which incindes covered
employees who have established membership in a CalPERS plan prior to January 2013, as well as the
"PEPRA/new” plan, which includes covered employees who have established membership in a CalPERS plan
after [anuary 2013, Each plan or membership contains unique benefits levels, which are enumerated in the
june 30, 2022 Annual Actuarial Valuation Reports.

At March 31, 2023, the following members were covered by the benefit terms:

Miscellancous Plans
Classic PEPRA
Plan Members Tierl Tier 2 Total
Active members 14 34 48
Transferred and terminated members 113 32 94
Retired members and beneficiares i5 - 25
Total plas members 101 &6 167

All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in the District’s cost-sharing
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans administered by the California Public Employees’
Retirement System (CalPERS]. Benefit provisions under the Plans are established by state statute and District
resolution. CalPERS issues publicly available reports that include a full description of the pension plans

regarding benefit provisions, assumptions, and membership information that can be found on the CalPERS
website.

Benefits Provided

CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments, and death
benefits to Plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries. Benefits are based on years of
credited service, equal to one year of full-time employment. Members with five years of total service are
eligible to retive at age 50 with statutorily reduced benefits. All members are eligible for nonindustrial
disability benefits after five years of service. The death benefit is one of the following the Basic Death Benefig,
the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or the Optional Settlement 2W Death Benefit The cost-of-living adjustments for
each Plan are applied as specified by the Public Employees’ Retirement Law.

Contributions

Section 20814{c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that the employer contribution
rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be effective on the
July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. Funding contributions for both Plans are determined annuslly
on an actuarial basis as of by CalPERS, The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary o
finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any
unfunded accrued liability. The District is required to contribute the difference between the actuarially
determined rate and the contribution rate of emnlovees,
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NOTE 9 - PENSION PLAN {continued)
A. General information about the Pension Plan (continued)

Contributions for the year ended March 31, 2023, (Measurement Date March 31, 202 2} were as follows;

Miscellaneous Plans
Classic PEPRA
Contribution Type Tigr 1 Tier Z Total
Contributions - employer kS 177,808 § 108,937 $ 286,737
Tetal contributions £ 177,800 H 168,937 $ 286,717

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions

Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability and Pension Expense

The District's net pension Kability for each Plan is measured as the proportionate share of the net pension
liability. The net pension liability of each of the Plans is measured as of March 31, 2023, and the total pension
liability for each Plan used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of
March 31, 2021, rolled forward to March 31, 2022, using standard update procedures, The District's
proportionate share of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the District's long-term share of
contributions to the pension plans relative to the projected contributions of all participating employers,
actuarially determined.

The following table shows the District’'s proportionate share of the risk pocl collective net pension liability
over the measurement period for the Miscellanecus Plan for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2023:

Plan Tolal Plan Fiduclary Change in Man Net
Plan Type and Balante Descriptions Pension Liability Net Position Pension Liabitity
CalPERS - Miscellaneous Plan:
Balanve a5 of june 30, 2071 {Meagurement Date} § 7,512,677 § 7,546,081 £ (33,4041
Balance as of lune 30, 2022 {Measurement Date) £ 8474855 k 7,291,889 $ 1182967
Change in Plan Net Pension Liability $ 962,178 $ (254,193 3§ 1218371
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NOTE 9 - PENSION PLAN (continued)

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions {continued)

The District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for the March 31, 2022, measurement date was
as follows:

Percentage Share of Risk Pool
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Change
Ending Ending increase/
March 31,2023 March 30,2022 {Decrease}
Messursment Date June 3§, 2022 june 30, 2021
Percentage of Risk Pool Net Pension Liabilisy 0.002528% -3.001750%; 000428745
Pergentage of Plan (PERF C) Net Pension Liabtlity 0010241% -0.000618%: 0.010859%

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2023, the District recognized pension Expense of $777,822. At March 31,
2023, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Qutflows  Deferred Inflows

Account Description of Resources of Resources

Pension contributions made after the measurement date $ 227,784 5
Difference between actual and proportionate share of emplover
contributions - (125,823)
Adjustment due to differences in proportions 352,462 {74,550}
Differences between expected and actual experience 23756 (15910
Differences between projected and actual earnings on pensiun
plan investments 216,688 -
Changes in assumptions 121,220 -

Total Deferred Outflows/(Inflows) of Resources $ 941,910 5 {216,283}

The deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from District contributions subsequent to
the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the subsequent fiscal
year. The deferred outflows/{inflows) of resources related to the difference between projected and actua
eartings on pension plan investments will be amortized over a closed five-year period. The deferred
autflows/(inflows]) of resources related o the net change in proportionate share of net pension Hability,
changes of assumptions, and differences between expected and actual experience in the measurement of the
total pension liability will be amortized over the Expected Average Remaining Service Life {EARSL) of all
members that are provided benefits {active, inactive, and retirees) as of the begianing of the measurement
period. The EARSL for the measurement period 1s 3.8 years.
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NOTE 9 - PENSION PLAN {continued)

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions (continued)

Anamount of $227,784 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subseqguent to the
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ending March 31,
2023. Other amounts reported as deferred autflows of resources and deferred infiows of resources related to
pensions will be recognized as a reduction to pension expense as follows;

Deferred
Amaortization Period Outflows/(Inflows)
Fiscal Year Ended March 31 of Resources
2024 $ 126414
2025 124,975
2026 113320
2027 132,534
Total % 497 843

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Total Pension Liability

For the measurement period ending March 31, 2022 (the measurement date), the total pension liability was
determined by rolling forward the March 31, 2020, total pension liability. The March 31, 2022, total pension
liability was based or: the following actuarial methods and assumptions;

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal in aceardance with the requirement of GASH

Statement No. 68
Actuarial Assumptions:

Discount Rate 6.90%

Inflation 2.30%

Salary Increases Varies by Entry Age and Servics

Mortality Rate Table Derived using CaiPERS' Membership Data for all Funds,

Post Retirement Benefit increase Contract COLA up w 2.30% until Purchasing Power Protection

Allowance Floor on Purchasing Power applies, 2.30% thereafter

Long-term Expected Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a bullding-block
method in which expected Riture real rates of return {expected returns, net of pension plan investment
expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took inte account both shart-term and lorg-
term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash Aows. Using historical returns of
all the funds’ asset classes, expected compound (geometric) returns were calculated over the short-term {first
10 years) and the long-term (i 1+ years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected nominal returns
for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated for each fund. The expected
rate of return was set by calculating the rounded single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same
present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and long-term returns,

The expected rate of return was then set equal to the single equivalent rate calculated above and adiusted to
account for assumed administrative expenses.
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NOTE 9 - PENSION PLAN (continued)

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions {continued)

Long-term Expected Rate of Return {continued)
The table below reflects long-term expected real rate of return by asset class.

New Strategic Real Retarn Heal Retuen

Invesiment Type’ Allocation Years 1- 167 Years 11+
Global Eguity 50.0% 4BO% 594
Fued Incoms A8.0% 1.00% 2.H4%
inflation Assets 01.0%% 67T 1LH1%
Private Equity 8.0%, 6305 7290,
Real Bsvate 130%% 175% 443%
Liguidiny 1.0% LN LGL%

L00.0%

* In the CalPERS's ACFR, fixed income is included in global debt securities: liquidity is included in short-
term investments; inflation assets are included in both global equity securities and global debt securities.
+ An expected inflation rate-of-return of 2.5% is used for years 1-10,

* An expected inflation rate-of-return of 2.9% is used for years 11+,

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.90%. The projection of cash flows used to
determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will he made at the current
member contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be made at statutorily required rates,
actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions, the Plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be
available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term
expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to
determine the total pension Hability.

Subsequent Events
There were no subsequent events that would materially affect the results in this disclosure.
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NOTE 9 - PENSION PLAN {continued)

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, and Deferred Qutflows/Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions {continued)

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net pension liability/{asset} of the Plan as of the measurement date, calculated
using the discount rate of 6.90%, as well as what the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using
a discount rate that is 1 percentage-point lower (5.90%) or 1 percentage-point higher {7.90%) than the
current rats:

Changes in the discount rate for the year ended March 31, 2023, was as follows:

Plan’s Net Pension Liability/[Asset)
Discount Rate - 1%  Corrent Discount  Discount Rate + 134

Pian Type 3.90% Rate 6.90% 7.50%
CHPERS - Miscellaneous Plan $ 2,338,242 2 1,182,967 $ 232,462

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately issuad
CalPERS financial report and can be obtained from CalPERS’ website under Forms and Publications.

C. Payable to the Pension Plans

At March 31, 2023, the District reported no payables for outstanding contributions to the CalPERS pension
plan required for the year ended March 31, 2023.

NOTE 10 - NET POSITION - NET INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS

At March 31, the net position - net investment in capital assets balance was calculated as follows:

Description Balance
Net investment in capital assets:

Capital assets - not being depreciated b4 2,311,330

Capital assets - being depreciated, net 7,179,163

Right-to-use asset financing - current porticn {122,000

Right-to-use asset financing - non-current portien 1,841,000}

Total net investment in capital assets 3 7,327,493
fo s i
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NOTE 11 - FUND BALANCES

At March 31, 2023, fund balances of the District’s governmental funds were classified as follows:

Totat
General Aswood Park City Mitigation Gavernmental
Description Fugd Fund Fund Fands
Nonspendable:
Prepusd dems £ £9 470 3 5 i 53,470
Restricted:
Ponsing 1rust 43B278 438224
Committed:
Capital projects 1AR0AHL LA BEE
COVID retin! funding 67874 287874
ADA resseve 3C.032 3032
Total Commitiod 1788 S 1788 388
Asgigned:
Frundation activities 1583 12683
Youth assistance 49,128 49,126
Arboratrum grant peojests 13576 . 13276
Apwond park projects . 4942 9942
Laty mutgation profects . . 1R0.020 150,020
Compensated sbyenres 38E.051 182651
Totai assigned 357138 5942 150020 417098
Unassigned 939,112 239,112
Total fund balances $ 3493534 1 5,942 3 159,020 b 3652,496

NOTE 12 - INTERFUND ACTIVITIES

Due to/from other funds amounts are for cash balances belonging to the Atwood Park Fund that are held in
the General fund. Due to/from other funds consisted of the following at March 31, 2023:

Due To/From

Amount From Fund To Fund

Purpose

$ 9,942 General Atwoad

Claim on cash

Interfund transfers for the year ending March 31, 2023, were as follows:

Transfer
Amgount From Fund To Fund Purpose
$ 54,281 City Mitigation General Capital outlay
1,580 General Atwood Park Mutual benefic

An nterfund transfer was made from the City Mitigation Fund to the General Fund for the purpose of
installing a wheelchair swing at Recreation Park. The interfund transfer from the General Fund to the Atwood
Park Fund was to allocate a portion of property tax revenue to act as payment for the mutual benefit use of

the park by members of the public.
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AUBURN AREA RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended March 31, 2023

NOTE 13 ~ JOINT VENTURE

The District is a member of The California Association for Park and Recreation Indewmnity (CAPRI) is a Joint
Powers Authority which provides insurance coverages, risk management, safety and loss prevention services
through a financially sound risk-sharing pool The original pool was created in 1986 while the current
organization is the result of the merger on July 1 2008 between California Association for Park and
Recreation Insurance and Park and Recreation District Employee Compensation (PARDEC).

CAPRI's membership consists of various recreation and park districts in California, Through its varioys
programs, members are able to pool member contributions and to realize the advantages of self-insurance. [t
provides coverage for property, general liability, workers' compensation, public officials and erployee
liability, automobile liability, and other minar coverages. CAPR! is under the contro! and direction of the
Board of Directors consisting of representatives of the member districts.

Each member agency pays a contribution commensurate with the leve! of coverage requested and shares

surpluses and deficits proporticnate to their participation in the joint-powers authority. Full financial

statements are available separately from the California Association for Park and Recreation Indemnity at

6341 Auburn Bivd,, Suite A, Citrus Heights, California 9562 1. Condensed information for CAPRI is as follows:
A. Entty CAPRI

E. Purpose To pool member contributions and realize the
advantages of sel-insurance

F  Participants As of june 30, 2022 - 64 member districts
. Governing board Seven representatives employed by members

District payments for FY 2023:

Property/Liability policy $174,313
F. Condensed financial information June 30, 2022
Audit signed March 27, 2023
Statement of financial position: June 30, 2022
Total assets $ 27858966
Deferred outflows 152,337
Total Habilities 19,347,062
Deferred inflows 433,498
Net position $ 8,240,743
Statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position:
Total revenues £ 14651737
Total expenses {10,857 208}
Change in net position 794,509
Beginning - net position 7,446,234
Ending - net position $ 8,240,743
G. Member agencies share of year-end financial position Mot Calculated
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AUBURN AREA RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended March 31, 2023

NOTE 14 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of damage to and destruction of assets;

errers and omissions; injuries to employees: and natural disasters.

The District is a member of the Special Districe Risk Management Authority { SDRMA), an intergovernmental
risk sharing joint powers autherity created to provide self-insurance programs for California special districts.
The purpose of the SDRMA is to arrange and administer programs of self-insured losses and to purchase

excess insurance coverage, Further information about the SDRMA is as follows:

Al
B,

G.

The District is self-insured for comprehensive liability coverage as a member of the California Association for
Park and Recreation Insurance (CAPRI). CAPRI is a public agency risk pool created pursuant to a joint
powers’ agreement between the numerous member Districts. CAPR! manages one poo! for all member
agencies. Bach member pays an annual premium to the system based on numerous factors including the
number of persennel, types and values of assets held. and an experience factor. CAPRI reinsures through a
commercial carrier for claims in excess of $1,000,000 for each insured event. The District also participates in
the Special District Risk Management Authority (SDRMA) Workers' Compensation and Employers’ Liability

Entity SDRMA
Purpose Tu poot member contributions and realize the
advantages of self-insurance

Participants ) Az of June 30, 2022 - 499 member agencies

Governing board Saven representatives employed by members

District payments for FY 2023:
Weorkers' compensation policy $67,491

Condensed financial information fune 30, 2022
Audit signed Movember 1, 2022

Statement of net position: June 30, 2022
Total assets 3 140005598
Deferred sutflows 750427
Total lHabilities 72,967 545
Deferred inflows 445,351

Net position 3 67,343 129

Statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position:
Total revenues % 82,252,069
Total expenses (81,252,227}

Change in net position DL Be2

Beginning - net position 66,343,287
Ending - net position 3 67,343,129

Member agencies share of year-end financial position Not Calculated

Coverage Agreement.
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AUBURN AREA RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended March 31, 2023

NOTE 14 - RISK MANAGEMENT {continued)
Coverage provided under CAPRI and SDRMA

Property/Liability Program

Comprehensive general liability coverage with a $25,000,000, including $1,000,000 {CAPRI) self-insured limit
per occurrence for personal injury and property damage to which the coverage applies. There is no
deductible to the District.

Public officials and employee liability coverage with a $1,000,000 annual aggregate limit per member district
because of 2 wrongful act which occurs during the coverage pericd for which the coverage applies. There is a
$25,000 deductible for any covered claim for wrongful termination payable by the District.

Flood and earthquake coverage with an annual aggregate limit of $5,000,000 for al! the member districts, The
deductible for all loss or damage arising from the risks of flood and/or earthquake is $50.000 per accurrence,
or 5% for earthquake and $50,000 for flood or wildfire, of the value of the building, contents, and/or
structure damaged, whichever is greater.

Theft and employee dishonesty coverage with a limit of $1,000.000 and a deductible of up to $25.000 per
occurrence, with $5,000 deductible.

Workers’ Compensation Program
Workers’ compensation coverage of $5,000,000 under (SDRMA) with zero-member deductible.

The District maintains workers' compensation coverage and employer's lability coverage in accordance with
the statutory requirements of the State of California.

Settied claims have not exceeded any of the coverage amounts in any of the last three fiscal years. Thers were
no reductions in insurance coverage in fiscal years 2023, 2022, and 2021. Liabilities are recorded when it is
probable that a loss has been incurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated net of the
respective insurance coverage. Liabilities include an amount for claims that have been incurred but not
reported (IBNR]. There were no IBNR claims payable as of March 31, 2023, 2022, and 2021.

NOTE 15 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Excluded Leases - Short-Term Leases and De Minimis Leases

The District does not recognize a lease recelvable and a deferred inflow of resources for short-term leases.
Short-term leases are certain leases that have a maximum possible term under the lease contract of 12-
months (or less), including any options to extend, regardless of their probability of being exercised.

Also. de minimis lessor or lessee leases are certain leases (ie, room rental, copiers, printers, postage
machines] that regardless of their lease contract period are de minimis with regards to their aggregate total
dollar amount to the financial statements as a whole.

Grant Awards

Grant funds received by the District are subject to audit by the grantor agencies. Such an audit could lead to
requests for reimbursements to the grantor agencies for expenditures disallowed under terms af the grant.
The management of the District believes that such disallowances, if any, would not be significant.
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AUBURN AREA RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended March 31, 2023

NOTE 15 ~ COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES {continued)

Litigation

The District is involved in routine litigation incidental to its business and may be subject to claims and
litigation from outside parties. After consultation with legal counsel and/or management, management
believes the ultimate outcome of such matters, if any, will not materially affect its financial condition,

NOTE 16 - CURRENT AND SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The District has evaluated subsequent events through June 23, 2023, the date which the financial statements
were available to be issued,
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AUBURN AREA RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2023

Variance
Final Positive
Budget Actual {Negative)
Revenues:
Property taxes § 3966719 $ 4035108 3 68,189
Charges for services 1,290,244 1,322,869 32,625
Rents and concessions 184,466 178,690 {8776}
Operating grants and coneributions 2TRE57 263595 {6,662}
Mitigation fees 85,000 85,000 -
Lease revenue 38,647 40,095 1.448
lavestment earnings 56,647 18986 (37,661}
Other revenue 40,548 31,412 {9,136}
Total revenues 5,932,528 5,975,755 44,227
Expenditures:
Current; :
Salaries and wages 2520677 2,323874 196,803
Employee benefits 777960 920718 {142,758)
Program costs 238,802 281891 {43.089)
Materials and services 1,839,285% 1,491,586 347,699
Capital outlay 754,899 856,630 {101.731)
Debt service:
Principal 119,000 119,000
Interest 43,513 43,513
Total expenditures 6,294,136 6,037,212 256,924
Excess{Delicit) of revenues over
{expenditures) {361,608) {61,457} 300,151
Other financing sources{uses):
Transfers in{out} . 34,281 (54,2813

Change in fund balance

[7.176) $ 245870
oo i oY
Fund balance:

Beginning of vear 3,499,710
End of vear $ 3492534
fo e e

See notes to the required supplementary information.
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AUBURN AREA RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
For the Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2023

Last Ten Fiscal Years®
Catifornia Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS] Miscellaneous Plan

District’s
Proportionate
Share ofthe Net  Plan's Fiduciary
District’s District’s Pension Liability NetPositlonasa
Praportion ofthe  Proportionate as a Percentage Percentage of
Measurement Net Pension Share of the Net District’s of Covered the Plan's Total
Date Liability Pension Liability  Covered Pavroll Payroil Peasion Liability
fume 30,2014 Yaries by plan 5 458,264 % 1333961 34.35% B6.17%
fune 30, 2615 COZ011% 458,264 £,333961 34.35% B4.02%
fume 30, 2014 G.02460%, 780,085 1719670 45.36% 80.64%
june 30, 2017 002482 956,748 1874726 51.57% B0.31%
fune 30,2018 D02480% 934,476 2059494 45.37% 83.05%
fune 30, 2019 002691% 1,077,429 1807953 59.59% 82.80%
fune 3G, 2020 QO2935% 1,238,090 1987040 62.94% B:.76%
fune 30, 2021 SO00176% {33404} 1,796,643 -1.86% 100.44%;
fune 30, 2022 G02581% 1,182,987 1,949,543 60.68% 86.04%
Notes to Schedule:
Benefit Changes:

There were no changes in beaelits,

Changes in Assumptions:

From fiscal year June 30, 2015 and fune 30, 2016:
GASB 68, paragraph 58 states that the long-term experted rate of return should be determined net of pensicn
plan investment expense but without reduction for pension plan administrative expense. The discount rate
of 7.50%used fur the June 30, 2014, measurement date was net of administrative expenses. The discount rate

of 7.65% used for the June 30, 2015, measurement date is without reduction of pension plan administrative
expense.

From fiscal year june 30, 2016 to June 30, 2017:
There were no changes in assumptions.

From fiscal year june 30, 2017 to june 30, 2018:
The discount rate was reduced from 7.55% to 7.15%,

From fiscal year June 30, 2018 to June 30, 2019:
There were no significant changes in assumptions.

From fiscal year fune 30, 2019 to June 30, 2020:
There were no significant changes in assumptions.

From fiscal year fune 30, 2020 to June 30, 2021:
There were no significant changes in assumptions,

From fiscal year june 30, 2021 to June 30, 2022:
There were no significant changes assumptions.

From fiscal year June 30, 2022 to June 36, 2023:
The discount rate was reduced from 7.15% to 5.90%, anc the the inffation rate a3 reduced from 2.50% tw 2.30%,

“Fiscal year 2014 was the first measurement date year of implementation; therefore, anly nine vears are shown,
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AUBURN AREA RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
Schedule of Pension Contributions
For the Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2023

Last Ten Fiscal Years®

California Public Employees' Retivement System {CalPERS) Miscellaneous Plan

Contributions
in Relation to Contributions
Actuariatly the Actuarially  Contribution as a Percentage
Determined Determined Deficiency Cavered of Covered
Fiscal Year Contribution Contribution {Excess) Payroll Payroll
2015 3 150,179 &% {150,179} 3 1,333,961 11.26%
2016 121,477 (121477} 1719670 746%
2017 128,997 (128,997} 1.874.726 5.88%
2018 146,616 {146,618} 2.059.494 7.12%
219 156,700 (1567003 2,244914 6.98%
2020 164,229 {164,229 - 1,961,011 8.37%
2021 2313538 (373,538) {140,000) 1742314 13.40%
2022 244,543 {(487,935) £243,393) 1,905,665 12.83%
2023 286,737 (286,737} - 1.949.8543 14.71%
Notes to Schedule:
Measurement Actuarial Cost  Asset Valuation Investment
Date Valuation Date Method Method inflation Rate of Return
June 30,2014 bune 30, 2013 Eniry Age Market Vaiue 2.75% 7.65%
June 30, 2015 fune 30, 2014 Entry Age Market Value 2.75% 7.65%
June 30,2016 funa 30, 2015 Entry Age Market Valye 2.75% 7.65%
June 30,2017 June 30, 2016 Entry Age Market Value 2.78% 7.15%
june 30,2018 fune 30, 2017 Entry Age Market Value 2.75% 7.15%
june 30,2019 fune 30, 2018 Entry Age Market Value 2.50% 7.15%
June 30, 2020 june 34, 2019 Entry Age Market Value 2.50% 7.15%
June 30, 2021 june 30, 2020 Entry Age Market Value 2.50% 7.15%
fune 30, 2022 june 30, 2020 Entry Age Market Value 2.30% 6.90%

Amortization Method Level percentage of payroll, closed

Salary Increases Depending o age, service, and type of emplovment

investment Rate of Return Net of pension plan investment expense, including inflatien
Retirement Age 50 years [2.0%®35), 52 years {2.00%@62)

Mortality Mertality assumptions are based on mortality rates resuiting from the

most recent CalPERS Experience Study adopted by the CalFERS Hoard

“Fiscal year 2015 was the first implementation vear; therefore, only nine years are shown.

See notes to the required supplementary information,
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AUBURN AREA RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT

Schedule of Changes in the District’s Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios
For the Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2023

Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2023 March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

March 31 2828
Measurement Date March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31,2021 Mareh 13, 2020
Total GPES Hability:
Service cost § 264543 b2 37804 3 28,774 ] T, 1
Interest 8283 FiR:p &1 5992 3514
Changes of sssumptions fH7828) {28274y (91,877 .
Bifferences between expected snd actual experioncy {26,331} .
Changes of beselit terms E - 108,149 :
Henefit paymenis ealin] {9281 (5841 (462}
Net change in tota) OPER Hability {85,540 15017 50,459 21,1382
Tolal DPER Hability - beginning 333,240 299223 247784 236,612
Total OPEB liability - ending i 157,909 $ 313240 3 pzay  § 247764
Covered-vmpioyes payroll $ 2071938 3 LBH3E73 3 1LASZ 465 ] TI%94T
mm&anm o IR
District’s net OFER lability 45 2 percentage
of covered-employee payroll L2 45% SEL20G 109 I5.41%,
AR
Notes to Schedule;
Benefit Changes:

Measyrement Date March 31 2020 - Thers wese no changes in bensfits
Measurameny Date March 31, 2021 - The District ammended the plan to include represented smployees
Measurement Date March 31, 2022 - There were no chianges in beefits
Measurement Date March 31, 2023 - Thers were 5o changes in benefits

Changes in Assutnptions:
Measurement Date March 33, 2020 - Thers were no thanges in assumptions
Measurement Date March 31, 2021 ~ Census data from the plans participssts was updated
Measurement Date March 31 2022 - The discount rate increased from 2,272 to 2 83%
Measursment Date March 31, 2023 - The discaunt rats incressed from 2 83% to 3.78%

" Fiscal year 202U was the first year of unplementation; therefore, only fous years are showr:

See notes to the required supplementary information,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors
Auburn Area Recreation and Park District
Auburn, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities and
each major fund of the Auburn Area Recreation and Park District (District) as of and for the year ended March
31, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District's basic
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated June 23, 2023,

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal
control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there 1s a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the District's
financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency
is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal contrcl that is less severe than a material
weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance,

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses
or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in
internal contro! that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that
have not been identified.



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District's financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and materia! effect on the
financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed

ne iastances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards,

Purpose of this Report

The purpase of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal contro! and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control
or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering the District's internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, this
communication is not suitable for any other purpese.

Walnut Creek, California
june 23. 2023

-123-



